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The Handicaps Welfare Association (HWA), 
Proud Recipient of the Charity Governance Award 2014 

Presented with the Charity Governance Award (Medium Category) in 2014, in recognition of 
its adoption of the highest standards of governance, the Handicaps Welfare Association (HWA) is a 
registered Institution of Public Character (IPC) charity. 

It is a Voluntary Welfare Organisation of, run by and for the benefit of, Singaporeans with physical 
disabilities. It is a full member of the National Council of Social Service. 

MISSION
We are committed to enhance the quality of life of people with physical disabilities and integrate them into 
mainstream society. 

OBJECTIVES
HWA aims to create among the community and the government an awareness of the special needs 
of people with disabilities, and solicit their co-operation and assistance to further the objectives of the 
Association. We are a self-help group among people with disabilities, and we exist to:

• foster friendship, understanding and mutual assistance among the Association’s Members;

• promote the welfare, education, training, rehabilitation, employment and other interests of Members 
and integrate them into mainstream society;

• enhance educational opportunities through bursaries, scholarships, grants, and subsidies as well as 
exchange programmes;

• obtain greater benefits and concessions for people with disabilities to enhance their quality of life; and 

• raise funds from the public and administer donations, gifts or bequests from any person, body or 
organisation to enhance the quality of life of Members and promote their independence.

BRIEF HISTORY 

Founded on 18 December 1969 by a group of 23 Persons with Disabilities (PWDs), it was first known as 
the Singapore Handicaps Friendship Club. In 1975, it became known as Singapore Association for the 
Disabled and late in 1976, its present name, Handicaps Welfare Association, was coined. 

HWA has come a long way from its modest origins amid a fledgling social landscape. Our Association 
has, since its inception in 1969, grown to become what it is today – a charity with a role and place in the 
contemporary Singapore social sector and an ever-evolving social cause to champion. 

CORE OPERATIONS 

Relying heavily on kind donations from, and the support of, the public, and fundraising activities, 
to defray its operational costs in carrying out its work, HWA aims to further the cause of our fellow 
community members with disabilities, by providing programmes and services to their benefit, ranging 
from rehabilitation therapy and home care to social support & integration to wheelchair-accessible 

transport. 

Upholding the belief that PWDs should not be denied transportation opportunities, HWA introduced its 
dedicated transport services in 1980. HWA’s special needs transportation schemes deploy a fleet of 
purpose-built, wheelchair-accessible vehicles, equipped with hydraulic lifts. These have helped to fill 
the gap in transportation for the physically challenged, allowing them access to an affordable, as well as 
reliable and safe, transportation means. 

HWA also runs two Rehabilitation Centres (at its Whampoa Headquarters and in Jurong Point 

Shopping Centre), and offers mobility and assistive aids for loan, among other social outreach services, 
to its clients, comprising Members as well as the general public needing assistance.

For more information about HWA, 

please visit its website (hwa.org.sg) and/or Facebook page (facebook.com/HWASingapore), 

or dial the HWA hotline at 6254 3006 (during office hours, between 9am and 6pm, from Mondays to Fridays).
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PRESIDENT’S  
FOREWORD

1

T
he Handicaps Welfare Association (HWA) has 
delivered yet another year of good performance 
despite limited resources and many challenges. 
We have grown rapidly in the past six years 

and introduced  several necessary healthcare services 

which are more cost- and manpower- intensive, such 

as home-based personal care and medical escort 

transport, to meet the growing demand from our 

members. The Association will continue to analyse 

the changing needs of our members and society as a 

whole, and take steps to provide services necessary to 
meet these demands. 

I am pleased to report that the renovation of our 

Whampoa premises has finally completed. We are 
honoured to have Mdm Halimah Yacob, the President 

of Singapore, to officiate the opening of the newly 
renovated premises on 5 December 2018. It is 

also the beginning of a new era for HWA, which is 

commemorating 50 years of community service with 

a series of activities leading up to a commemorative 

dinner on 18 December 2019. Mdm Halimah has 

kindly agreed to be our Guest-of-Honour (GOH) at this 
finale event.     

HWA has come a long way since its humble beginnings 

in December 1969 as a social and friendship club for 

people with physical disabilities. We grew year after 

year at a steady pace. Today, we remain one of the 

pioneering organisations for persons with disabilities 

(PWDs), providing services to our 2,062 members and 

thousands of beneficiaries, especially the elderly and 
those with physical disabilities.

Mr. Edmund Wan Fook Wing, PBM

President

I would like to convey HWA’s heartfelt appreciation to 
all friends and well-wishers who have contributed to 
our Association in various capacities and helped to 
achieve this significant milestone in our history. 

Our special appreciation goes to:

1. Founding Members and past Presidents, who set 
the vision and worked tirelessly to uplift the lives of 
people with disabilities over the past 50 years.

2.  Our Advisors who, despite their busy schedules, 
advised and assisted us whenever we needed. Our 
volunteers for their dedication, and for sacrificing 
their time and talents selflessly to bring comfort and 
joy to the lives of our clients. They form an integral 
part of our Association.

3.  Our clients, who have great faith in our special 
home care, rehabilitation and transport services. 
We would not be able to exist for so many years 
without you.  

4.  Last but not least, our ministry partners, the 
community supporters, and our kind donors. Without 
your assistance and belief in us, there is no way we 
could have come so far.  

Thank you all, for supporting us for all these years. We 
treasure your contribution and seek your continuing 
support on our way forward.
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“HWA will go all out to serve the 
needs of our clients. This has and 
will always be our belief and motto 
– we exist because of you.”

50 Years of Progress

Although Singapore is a young nation, much has been 
achieved to benefit PWDs. My sincere appreciation 
goes to all the people who have worked tirelessly to 
achieve this. Over the years, with the enthusiasm of 
our pioneering members, along with greater public 
awareness and governmental support, we have 
overcome many hurdles. In the early years, many 
challenges were deemed impossible to overcome. 
Today, children with disabilities attend mainstream 
schools, and PWDS can attain relevant skills and travel 
freely island-wide with the aid of special structures and 
facilities, and compete for equal opportunities in all 
sectors. We have members actively engaged in sports 
and compete in many international events. We should 
acknowledge these improvements and advancements, 
and also cherish our part in shaping Singapore society 
over the past 50 years.

As the Association moves beyond its 50th year, I hope 
to see a new generation of young leaders continue 
HWA’s movement of working alongside the government 
and well-wishers to meet the needs and expectations 
of future generations.

On Governance

The Association is fully committed to upholding the 
highest standards of corporate governance and 
operates transparently. To our management and staff, 
our service quality standards, integrity, and caring 
attitude are the key commitments belonging to our 
service delivery model. No client is denied a service 

due to their financial limitations. HWA will go all out to 
serve the needs of our clients. This has and will always 
be our belief and motto – we exist because of you. 

We appreciate the support, guidance, and cooperation 
received from the government over the past 50 years. 
Our financial performance and achievements in 2018 
would not have been possible if not for government 
subvention grants, donations, and the support of 
the public. My sincere gratitude goes to you for your 
relentless support. We would also like to extend our 
appreciation and thanks to all our supporters, partners, 
and members, especially the Tote Board for its support 
and continued trust in HWA, and Chen Su Lan Trust, 
a supporter that has stood by us and seen us through 
difficult times.

Let us work together as a team to overcome all 
challenges that come our way to make HWA an 
even better place for our Members and beneficiaries. 
Inevitably, new needs and challenges will emerge due 
to changes in the society, technology, and economy. 
We should embrace these new challenges with an 
open heart and mind, and equip ourselves with the 
required knowledge, skills, and innovative attitude. 
Above all, we need to have a heart that truly cares for 
the people. 
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THE CHARITY  
GOVERNANCE AWARD 

HWA clinched the Charity Governance Award in 

2014, having adopted the highest standards of 

governance and the best practices and protocols 

recommended by the Charity Council. 

We remain humbled by the Charity Council’s 

endorsement, a proud testament to our 50 

years of dedication and service to our fellow 

community members with disabilities. It affirms 
our commitment to upholding the highest possible 

standards of governance, transparency, and 

accountability, to garner, honour, and sustain 

public trust. 

Our governance and leadership structures 

and processes continue to guide us further in 

responsible stewardship.   

CONFLICT OF  
INTEREST POLICY 

All Board Members and employees of the charity 

are required to declare on an annual basis or, as 

and when necessary, make full disclosure of any 
interests, relationships, and/or holdings that could 

potentially result in a conflict of interest to their 
functions and/or employment by the charity. When 

a conflict of interest situation arises, the Member/
employee shall abstain from participating in the 

discussion, decision-making, and voting on the 
matter concerned.

RESERVES POLICY 

We set aside the operating surplus from each 
year, if any, to provide financial stability for our 
operations. These reserves also allow us to 
continue sustainably disbursing the subsidies we 
provide, and are the means for development of 
our principal activities. 

We intend to maintain our policy on reserves at a level 
at least five times our annual operating expenditure. 
The Executive Director reviews, on a yearly basis, 
the amount of reserves required to ensure that they 
are adequate to fulfil our continuing obligations and 
support our operations.

As at 31 March 2019, the charity’s annual operating 
expenditure to total funds ratio stands at 0.57. 

INVESTMENT POLICY AND  
RISK MANAGEMENT 

Unutilised funds from the preceding year and surplus 
generated from the current year’s fundraising efforts 
shall be pooled with our existing reserves, and be placed 
in low-risk financial instruments such as fixed deposits.

We shall also monitor and assess the suitable interest 
rates and maturity dates so as to optimise the returns 
on the fixed deposits. 

The Association currently does not have a Risk 
Management Committee. However, the EXCO 
determines HWA’s risk appetite and periodically 
reviews operational activities to identify areas of 
significant risk as well as appropriate measures to 
control and mitigate the risks. 

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY 

We are committed to maintaining a high standard 
of moral and ethical conduct. Hence, we set out to 
comply with the requirements and stipulations of 
accounting, financial reporting, internal controls, 
corporate governance, auditing, and any other 
relevant legislation. 

In line with this commitment, and our belief in open 
communication and transparency, our whistle-blowing 
policy aims to provide an avenue for our employees, 
volunteers, and external parties to raise concerns, if 
any, and have reassurance that they will be protected 
from reprisals or victimisations for whistle-blowing in 
good faith.

GOVERNANCE2
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The policy covers issues where the following may be 
suspected:  

i. criminal offences; 

ii. failure to comply with legal obligations; 

iii. miscarriages of justice; 

iv. actions which endanger the health or safety of 
staff and/or the public; 

v. actions which cause damage to the 
environment; and 

vi. actions which are intended to conceal any of 
the above.

PERSONAL DATA  
PROTECTION POLICY 

HWA recognises its obligations under the Personal 
Data Protection Act 2012 (PDPA), which includes the 
collection, use, and disclosure of personal data for the 
purpose(s) for which an individual has given consent.

The personal data collected by HWA include an 
individual’s full name, NRIC, passport or other 
identification number, telephone number(s), mailing 
address(es), e-mail address(es) and/or any other 
information relating to any individuals which the 
individual has provided us with, in any form(s) 
submitted to us, and/or via other forms of interaction 
with us.

HWA relies on personal data to provide its services, 
and therefore we entrust the individual to ensure 
that the personal data provided are accurate and 
complete. Failure on the individual’s part to do so 
may result in our inability to provide him/her with an 
effective rendering of the services requested.

Purposes for the Collection, Use and Disclosure 

of Personal Data

HWA collects, uses and discloses personal data for:

(a) assessment of suitability for the programmes 
offered by HWA;

(b) case management, assessment, and planning 
of services;

(c) contacting client and/or his/her family 
member(s) and/or significant other(s), for 
any purposes related to the services HWA is 
providing and/or on matters arising during the 
programme;

(d) referral to external agencies when required;

(e) sharing and/or updating of client’s information 
and progress, under the pertinent programme, 
with any third-parties that are involved in the 
programme that client has signed up for;

(f) generating reports and statistics;

(g) internal records and references;

(h) programme evaluation and/or research;

(i) issuing of tax-exemption receipt(s);

(j) contacting the individual’s nominee(s), in 
relation to any emergencies;

(k) invitation(s) to HWA’s event(s), workshop(s) 
and/or activity/activities.

Consent to Disclosure of Personal Data

HWA will take reasonable steps to protect the 
individual’s personal data against unauthorised 
disclosure. Subject to the provisions of any applicable 
law, personal data belonging to our clients and/or 
family members, and/or others, may be disclosed, 
for the above purpose(s) to the pertinent parties, 
that may involve/include our partner, and/or 
supporting, government (-linked) agency/agencies, 
fellow Voluntary Welfare Organisation(s), corporate 
organisation(s), medical body/bodies, educational 
institutions(s), regulators, law enforcement bodies/
groups and/or any other relevant party/parties, at 
any stage(s) of our collaboration on, and/or actual 
execution of, the project(s) concerned. 

Photographs and/or video-recordings will be taken 
as well, during our events (including our annual 
social outreach and/or fundraising events, like our 
“Wheel, Walk or Jog”, HWA Flag Day, HWA All-Cash 
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Donation Draw, Members’ Year-end Party, Members’ 
Social Integration excursions/outings/trips/workshops/
sessions/training, etc.), throughout the year in review. 

HWA would be informing all parties involved, via 
the pertinent invitation e-mail(s)/flyer(s)/letter(s) 
and/or through (verbal) announcement(s) via our 
online/social media (including, but not limited to, 
our website, Facebook page, e.g.) prior to, and 
possibly also on and/or following, the day(s) of the 
event concerned. The purpose of the photo-taking 
and/or video recording for the event is primarily for 
HWA’s corporate reports and/or publications, meant 
mainly to publicise the event and/or any noteworthy 
aspect(s) of it (such as via HWA’s quarterly newsletter 
Handicaps Digest, Annual Report, Facebook page 
posting(s) and/or website posting(s)).

Contacting HWA Regarding Withdrawal of Consent, 

Access and/or Correction(s) of Personal Data

Should you:

(a) have any questions or feedback relating to 
your personal data and/or our Data Protection 
Policy;

(b) wish to withdraw your consent to any use of 
your personal data as set out in this Data 
Protection Policy; and/or

(c) wish to obtain access, and/or make any 
correction(s), to your personal data records, 

please contact HWA, by e-mailing and/or snail-
mailing us as follows:

• e-mail address: dpo@hwa.org.sg

• snail mail address:

	 The	Data	Protection	Officer	
 Handicaps Welfare Association

 16 Whampoa Drive

 Singapore 327725
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Board of Management/Executive Committee (for the Term 2017 – 2019), 
applicable for the period from Apr 2018 to March 2019:-

Board Member Designation

Attendance 

at Board 

Meetings

No. of years, 

consecutively,

as Elected  

Board 

Members:

Profession

Mr. Edmund Wan Fook Wing, PBM  President 10 out of 11
7.5 years 

(since 2011) 
Retiree

Mr. Hui Beng Hong, PBM Vice-President 8 out of 11
7.5 years 

(since 2011) 
Consultant 
Engineer

Ms. Desiree Lim Kok Liang Honorary 
Secretary

10 out of 11
21.5 years 

(since 1997) 
Group Finance 

Manager

Mr. Larry Ng Poh Kwang
Honorary 
Treasurer 

11 out of 11
 3.5 years 

(since 2015) 
Retiree

Mr. Edgar Cheong Tuck Mun Honorary Assistant 
Secretary 

9 out of 11
1.5 years 

(since 2017) 
Undergraduate

Dr. Navin Nair 
Honorary Assistant 

Treasurer 
11 out of 11

3.5 years 
(since 2015) 

Operations 
Manager

Ms. Wendy Lau Wong Hing
Committee 

Member
11 out of 11

3.5 years 
(since 2015) 

Retiree

Ms. Ivory Baey Hwee Leng
Committee 

Member
10 out of 11

1.5 years 
(since 2017)

Self-employed 

Mr. Richard Kuppusamy Chien-
Ming*

Committee 
Member

2 out of 11*
1.5 years 

(since 2017) 

Regional Digital 
Integration 
Manager  

Ms. Judy Anne Wee, PBM  Committee 
Member

9 out of 11
 1.5 years 

(since 2017) 
Senior Manager

Mr. Raja Singh, PBM
Committee 

Member
7 out of 11

1.5 years 
(since 2017)

Director 

Dr. William Tan Kian Meng, BBM, 
PBM (up to 24 Oct 2018)  

Committee 
Member

1 out of 7
1 year 

(since 2017) 
Medical Director 

* Mr. Kuppusamy has been on hospitalisation leave most of the time during the financial year under review.
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HONORARY 
SECRETARY’S 
REPORT

3

Ms. Desiree Lim Kok Liang

Honorary Secretary 

Dear Members, supporters, volunteers, and well-wishers, 

HWA is celebrating its 50th anniversary in 2019. This is 

a significant milestone that we have achieved. Thanks 
to the clear vision of our Founder Members, past and 

present leaders, significant support from our 2,000-over 
members, hundreds of volunteers, well-wishers, donors, 

and supporters. Our sincere appreciation goes to each 

and every person who has contributed to our Association 

in one way or another over these 50 years. 

The renovation of our Whampoa campus has been 

completed, providing a safer, more conducive workplace 
that also meets our beneficiaries’ evolving needs. We 
invited our members to visit these upgraded facilities by 

organising an “open house” from 28 March to 30 March 

2019. Those who visited have given us encouraging 
feedback on the upgraded facilities. 

HWA’s membership has been greying rapidly, in that many 
new members joining us the past few years are between 
50 to 60 years old. Currently, 71 per cent of HWA’s 
members are at least 51 years old, and 41 per cent are 
above 61 years old. To meet the service needs of these 
groups of people, we will be providing services that are 
suitably targeted towards them. 

Younger members can still tap on all our existing services. 
In fact, we are also exploring opportunities to create 
dedicated service provisions for younger members. If you 
are a Member below 50 years of age, let us know your 
views on this by e-mailing us at hwa@hwa.org.sg.  

30%

41%
16%

9%

4%

16 to 30 years

31 to 40 years

41 to 50 years

51 to 60 years

61 years and above

Age Range:

Status of the Membership Register

 As at 31 March 2019, the Association has a register of 
2,062 Members in total.
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Our Condolences 

During the year in review, the Association was notified 
of the demise of the following Members:

These Members whom we have lost will be truly 
missed. Our Executive Committee and staff extend 
their heartfelt sympathies and deepest condolences 
to the bereaved families and friends. 

Let us all take heart that the 50 years that have passed 
were remarkable and memorable for many of us. We 
have supported thousands of beneficiaries along the 
way, contributed to nation building, and facilitated a 
firm platform of equal opportunities for people with 
physical disabilities in the community.

With renewed optimism and vigour, I welcome the 
50th anniversary and a new chapter of HWA, as our 
life story continues to enrich the community through 
new initiatives and success stories.  

With the expansion of service dimensions that 
are more manpower- and cost-intensive, HWA’s 
operational fund requirements has increased several 
fold in recent years. The additional financial support 
we provide to our beneficiaries, who are financially 
needy and unable to pay service fees, also contribute 
to this increase. As informed earlier, in better ensuring 
HWA’s longer-term sustainability, all new services are 
operating under various ministry-funded schemes. 
This move will help people who are truly facing 
financial difficulties to receive adequate financial 
assistance from the means-tested government 
subsidies allocated to them. HWA will continue to 
assist our members’ needs further through additional 
subsidies. 

Whilst we have gained new members, supporters, 
and friends along the way, regrettably, we have had 
to bid a fond farewell to certain individuals that have 
left, but will always be a part of our Association. 

Ahmad Hisham Bin 
Abdul Rahim

Chandran S/O 
Muthusamy

Chang Khai Keong

Chen Geok Hwee
Chua Pei Jun Yvonne

Goh Zhi Yi

Lim Chye Hin

Lim Heng Chin

Ong Chin Soon

Teo Suay Li

Ordinary Members 
(listed in alphabetical order of surname/name):

Chew Wah Heng Eric

Foo Kok Liang Alfred
Ho Soo Seng Englebert 
Eagle Alan

Lee Choon Kee 
Lawrence

Lim Koon Heng

Look Kwei Hiong
Mathiew Jerilyn Anne 
Stevens

Neo Lee Meng Lucy

Ng Chor Chin

Ng Song Leng

Ong Lay Peng

Rabiah Bee Bte A 
Ahkhan
Tan Ah Min

Tan Lim Sim William

Teo Chang Siah

Yeo Wei Lun

Life Members 
(listed in alphabetical order of surname/name):
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Our Executive Committee comprises, typically, 12 Members of the Association. Elected every two years at the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM), these dedicated men and women serve on an honorary basis. 

The Executive Committee oversees, and advises on, the management of the Association, and ensures its 
compliance with sound governance practices so that its objectives are attained. 

THE EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE

4
2017-2019

Mr. Edmund Wan Fook Wing, PBM
President

Mr. Hui Beng Hong, PBM
Vice-President

Ms. Wendy Lau Wong Hing 
Committee Member

Ms. Judy Anne Wee, PBM 
Committee Member

Ms. Desiree Lim Kok Liang  
Honorary Secretary

Mr. Richard Kuppusamy Chien-Ming 
Committee Member

Mr. Raja Singh, PBM 
Committee Member

Ms. Ivory Baey Hwee Leng 
Committee Member

Dr. William Tan Kian Meng, BBM, PBM 
Committee Member
(Up to 24 October 2018)

Dr. Navin Nair  
Honorary Assistant Treasurer

Mr. Larry Ng Poh Kwang 
Honorary Treasurer

Mr. Edgar Cheong Tuck Mun 
Honorary Assistant Secretary
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Sub-committees are headed by Members of the Executive Committee and appointed staff.

FUNDRAISING SUB-COMMITTEE:

Chairperson

Mr. Larry Ng Poh Kwang

Co-Chair(s)

Ms. Desiree Lim Kok Liang

Staff-in-attendance

Mr. Subrata Banerjee

Mr. Jones Pung Teck Huat
Ms. Vasantha Thevi

Mr. Tang See Chong Freddie 

Ms. Josephine Chua Seok Hoon

REPRESENTATIVES TO  

EXTERNAL AGENCIES:

National Council of Social Service

Mr. Edmund Wan Fook Wing, PBM
Mr. Hui Beng Hong, PBM

Singapore Disability Sports Council

Mr. Hui Beng Hong, PBM

Ms. Desiree Lim Kok Liang

Building and Construction Authority

Mr. Hui Beng Hong, PBM

Mr. Edmund Wan Fook Wing, PBM

Microfinance	Evaluation	Committee
Mr. Edmund Wan Fook Wing, PBM
Mr. Jerry Shia

HUMAN RESOURCE SUB-COMMITTEE:

Chairperson

Mr. Edmund Wan Fook Wing, PBM

Members

Dr. Navin Nair

Mr. Larry Ng Poh Kwang

Staff-in-attendance

Mr. Subrata Banerjee

Ms. Joyce Wang Yi

HONORARY ADVISORS:

Honorary Medical Advisors

Prof. Peter Lim Huat Chye

Assoc. Prof. Roy Ng Kwok Weng
Assoc. Prof. Tan Seang Beng

Dr. Edward Balan Menon

Dr. Siow Woei Yun

Dr. Puah Ken Lee

Honorary Legal Advisors

Harry Elias Partnership LLP (Mr. Tan Chau Yee) 

Mr. Roy Yeo Kan Kiang

Honorary Building Advisor(s) 

Mr. Lee Mun Hoe

Mr. Yeo Chye Teck

Honorary Electrical Advisors

Mr. Loh Kok Onn

SUB-COMMITTEES 
AND ADVISORS

5
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Executive Committee
(comprising Members who are 

persons with disabilities) 

Executive Director

HOME CARE

REHABILITATION  
(Whampoa (HQ) &  

Jurong Point (Branch))  

CASE MANAGEMENT 

TRANSPORT 

 SOCIAL SERVICE 
(incl. Member Services &  

Social Integration) 

Administration
(incl. Human 
Resource)

Corporate 
Communications 

SERVICES Fundraising Finance

Information
Technology 

& Data 
Protection

ORGANISATIONAL 
STRUCTURE

6A
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(listed by department; Head of Department, if any, is listed first and printed in bold italics; HWA personnel are generally deployed at the Whampoa HQ, 

except for those based at the Jurong Point (Branch) Rehabilitation Centre, marked with an asterisk (*)) 

Executive Director: Subrata Banerjee

  CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENTS

Administration & Human Resource:
Joyce Wang Yi (Manager)
Goh Thean Tye Dexter (Executive)  
Ainon Bte Abdul Rahman (Receptionist) 
Talib Bin Abdul Aziz (Assistant Executive) 
Lim Suay Kim Sally (Senior Office Assistant)  

Corporate Communications:
Eugene Xavier Lim Ping Yen (Executive)

Finance:
Jones Pung Teck Huat (Senior Manager/ 
Finance Head) 
Juande Tan Teck Kern (Manager)
Ko Chiu Chih Samantha (Senior Executive)  
Koh Kin Yong Victor (Senior Assistant Executive)
Ng Lily (Senior Assistant Executive) 

Fundraising:
Jones Pung Teck Huat (Senior Manager/ 
Fundraising Head)
Vasantha Thevi D/O V Sinnadurai (Executive)  
Josephine Chua Seok Hoon (Executive/Volunteer Management)
Tang See Chong Freddie (Senior Assistant Executive)   

Information Technology (IT): 
Roumele Jay Villorente Baylocon 
(Senior	Executive/Data	Protection	Officer)

  SUPPORT SERVICES DEPARTMENTS

Social Service:
Zhang Hui Angela (Social Worker/Head Social Services & 
Case Management)
Lim Lan Eng Dolris (Senior Assistant Executive) 
Nanama d/o Rathakrisna (Assistant Executive)
Case Management:
Paul Chin Fei Loong (Executive)
Cheong Mei Kuen Adeline (Assistant Executive) 

Social Integration:
Tang See Chong Freddie (Senior Assistant Executive)

  CORE SERVICES DEPARTMENTS

Home Care Services:
Ng Lay Keng (Manager)
Soe Soe Nyo (Senior Physiotherapist) 
Shivani Pannirselvam (Physiotherapist) 
Lim Jie Qi Carina (Nurse)
Pang Wan Ping Clara (Nurse) 
Lim Yu Ling (Assistant Executive)
Ko Ko Gyi (Enrolled Nurse)  
Than Tun (Enrolled Nurse)  
Mya Mya Kyu (Senior Healthcare Assistant) 
Magarita (Healthcare Assistant) 
Sabia Baanu D/O M Barick (Healthcare Assistant)  
Kyi Lwin (Healthcare Assistant) 
Khin Thandar Ohn (Healthcare Assistant) 

Rehabilitation (Whampoa (HQ))
Duraisamy Ramesh (Centre Manager, and Senior Physiotherapist)
Ponnusamy Kathirvel (Senior Occupational Therapist)
Lee Teck Hock (Occupational Therapist) 
Tan Qing Wen Ethan  (Occupational Therapist Under Supervision) 
U Saw Kelvyn  (Physiotherapist)
Vinoth Kumar Nisha (Physiotherapist Under Supervision)
Lim Sew Eng @ Foong Soon Yee  (Assistant Executive)
Kyaw Kyaw Naing  (Healthcare Assistant)
Lim Jia Ying  (Therapist Assistant)
Yung Shin Mei  (Therapist Assistant)

*Rehabilitation (Jurong Point Rehabilitation Centre)
*Mani Murugeswaran (Centre Manager, Senior Occupational 
Therapist) 
* Aruna Rajaguru (Senior Physiotherapist) 
* Muhamad Faizal Bin Zaini (Physiotherapist) 
* Garcia Tessa Claire Marie S.  (Occupational Therapist)
* Aidil Bin Jalil (Assistant Executive ) 
* Marlar Hla Maung (Senior Therapy Assistant) 
* Goh Ah Kai (Therapist Assistant)

Transport Services:
Simon Ching Sheue Jyh (Manager)
Vincent Kok Chun Wai (Senior Executive)
Ng Soo Kiang Grace (Executive)
Ivy Seah Bee Beng (Senior Assistant Executive)
Lai Kwai Hoe (Assistant Executive) 
Wong Yoke Wah (Assistant Executive)

Principle Driver, Senior Drivers, drivers, and healthcare/transport 
attendants, listed in alphabetical order of surname:
Chan Chee Kwong
Goh Swee Seng
Ho Yuke Suen (Steven)
Kang Chuan Geok
Kyaw Zay Yar Tun
Lau Poh Geok
Lee Hoe Seng (Tommy)
Leow Boy Hong
Lim Hwee Hua 
Lim Seok Hoe
Loh Siew Kwok 
Low Boon Kiat Michael
Low Hang Kwee (William)
Nant Mu Sikalain (Freda)
Naw Malal Mya Wah
Ng Seck Yeow (Simon)
Ng Seng Huat
Sien Keng (Mark)
Sim Beng San
Sim Wee How
Sivaperakasam S/O Ramiah
Soh Hong Kim
Yeo Tiong Seng (Johnson)    
&
Drivers, healthcare/transport attendants and admin assistants, 
48 in total, outsourced from external agency. 

(The Association employs full-time (and part-time) staff for its daily administration and operations, 

as well as a team of outsourced staff, while enlisting the help of 

freelance personnel and volunteers (including persons with disabilities), to carry out its work.) 

(as at 31 March 2019)

STAFF COMPOSITION6B
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7 THE YEAR IN 
FIGURES

3. Both our Rehabilitation Centres served a 
total of 324 rehabilitation clients over the 
past financial year. Both centres have also 
conducted a grand total of:

10,024
client 
rehabilitation 
sessions

over the past financial year. 

5. From April 2018 till end-March 2019, 
other than supporting

secure the Assistive Technology Fund 

(ATF), to aid them with purchasing assistive 
technology devices, so that they can live 
more independently and be better self-
empowered.

HWA’s Social Services Department has helped

34
HWA 
Members  
and non-
Members

2,062 HWA 
Members, 

4. HWA Home Care Services  
have benefitted a total of

this financial year, 
and served  

the previous financial year.

180clients

5,641 sessions

1. Our wheelchair-inclusive Transport Services 
have served our clients on a total of

66,935
trips
the past year. 

2. HWA has served a total of

This total figure is inclusive of HWA’s 

2,062-strong Member population, also 
HWA’s highest registered membership 
enrolment to date.

3,918
clients
this past 
financial year

(including both HWA Members and HWA beneficiaries)
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FUNDRAISING 
& COMMUNITY 
OUTREACH

8

The initiation and implementation of annual fundraising 
and public awareness events by the Association 
remain HWA’s key avenues for public awareness and 
social outreach. These efforts have not only raised 
HWA’s profile in the social service sector, they have 
also made possible access to financial and related 
means of supporting its operations. 

Other than contributions received from well-meaning 
donors and supporters of our cause, HWA also had the 

following  fundraising events to raise fund to support 
our services and operation.  

We remain grateful to our many loyal and thoughtful 
collaborators, supporters, and well-wishers, who 
have continued to believe in us and our work. We are 
particularly grateful to the Tote Board for supporting 
our fundraising projects. We are also thankful for the 
generous and invaluable support rendered by our 
many valued partners, some of which are mentioned 
for their involvement in the following events/platforms. 
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along with our very sporting and passionate corporate 
volunteers, students, and members of the public, who 
joined the main event highlight – the “Wheel, Walk 
or Jog” (WWJ). The WWJ was flagged off by Mr. 
Desmond Lee around 5.15pm. The WWJ contingent 
covered a scenic route spanning about 5km. 

HWA thanks all involved in this event, in particular 
Mr. Desmond Lee, for reaching out so readily to 
our many wheelchair-bound beneficiaries, and for 
making this event extra memorable and meaningful.  

HWA Flag Day 2018

Held on Saturday, 15 September 2018, HWA’s Flag 
Day saw many well-wishers and supporters step 
forward as volunteer tin-bearers to hit the streets at 15 
strategic locations island-wide to solicit donations. Our 
dedicated donors, supporters, corporate and student 
volunteers, and sponsors turned up in force to render 
their support to our cause, and also mingled with our 
Members whom they have been “buddying” with. 

The readiness and resounding support of the many 
educational and corporate institutions that we 
partnered contributed to the event’s great success. 
We are immensely grateful for the support of our 
volunteers, who not only helped us raise funds, but 
also helped count the collections on the following day. 

We would like to thank APRO Asian Protection Pte 
Ltd in particular, for their continued support over the 
years in providing security services for our annual 
Flag Days. 

We are also grateful to the well-meaning and kind 
community out there for their ready support and 
contributions. We would also wish to thank our many 
inspired and inspiring supporters, and our ever-trusty 
and helpful HWA Members, who have partnered us in 
better engaging our giving community.

HWA’s 34th “Wheel, Walk or Jog”

HWA held its 34th annual “Wheel, Walk or Jog” charity 
event and family carnival on Saturday, 21 April 2018, at 
the Marina Barrage, from 10am to 7pm. 

Aimed at further raising awareness of PWDs and 
raising funds to assist HWA’s beneficiaries through 
its services and operations, this event was graced 
by our Guest-of-Honour Mr. Desmond Lee, Minister 
for Social and Family Development, and the Second 
Minister in the Ministry of National Development. 

We would like to express our sincere appreciation to 
the Public Utilities Board for kindly allowing us to use 
Marina Barrage, and our loyal supporters who have 
always been there when we needed them. These 
include the Tote Board, Aerospec Supplies, Tian Lu 
Zhi Jia, as well as the donors, especially Ms. Irene 
Png Ai Leng and Mr. Vincent Chia Kwok Meng for 
their unwavering support, and corporate volunteers 
who have helped us make this event a success. 
Special thanks to JP Morgan’s management and staff 
for creating and managing the fun games stalls, and 
also sponsoring the games stalls prizes.

The event, which included a family carnival 
commencing at 11am, saw a very encouraging 
turnout. The crowd included HWA’s beneficiaries 
and members, donors, supporters, and well-wishers, 
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HWA All-Cash Donation Draw 2018

Our All-Cash Donation Draw 2018 was held at HWA’s 
Whampoa premises on Saturday, 3 November 2018. 
The results of the draw were published in The Straits 
Times on 7 November 2018, as well as on HWA’s 
official website. 

We would also like to thank the many HWA Members 
who have assisted in the ticket sales, and all who have 
purchased tickets. The success of this fundraising 
event would not have been possible without their 
proactive support and contributions.

Festive Appeal 2018/2019

The festive season fundraising appealed to the public 
to show their support for the beneficiaries we serve. 
We are very grateful to the strong support shown to us. 

Retailers’ Support

We are particularly grateful to NTUC FairPrice  
Co-Operative Ltd for its on-going and valued support 
in allowing HWA to place its donation boxes at various 
NTUC FairPrice supermarkets and outlets across 
Singapore.  

We would like to commend the ever-supportive and 
thoughtful donors out there, among them the kind 
members of the public, whose loose change has 
certainly made a difference and helped in no small way 
to further our cause and mission of serving community 
members with disabilities. We are privileged to receive 
continued support of our work.  

We would like to thank everyone, 

including all collaborators, volunteers, 

and participants, who have supported 

these projects and everyone else 

connected to our fundraising endeavors.

We remain humbled by all the help that 

has come our way, and by the continued 

commitment by many to our social 

cause.  To our donors and sponsors, 

“THANK YOU”.

Fa Cai Cup 2019

HWA is ever grateful to Mr. Chiew Wah Hong, who 
has tirelessly raised funds for HWA the past 24 years 
by gathering a group of businessmen (all of whom 
are golf enthusiasts) for the annual Fa Cai Cup golf 
tournament. 

The event was held on Friday, 8 February 2019, 
the fourth day of the Lunar New Year. We remain 
indebted to Mr. Chiew and his committee members for 
organising this fundraising event .

Singapore Contractors  
Association Ltd Charity  
Golf Tournament 2018

HWA is grateful to the Singapore Contractors 
Association  Ltd (SCAL) for adopting HWA as their 
beneficiary for the Charity Golf Tournament held on 
26 July 2018 at the Singapore Island Country Club. 

SCAL has always played an active role in charitable 
projects since its inception. It provides support to 
Voluntary Welfare Organisations (VWOs) like HWA, 
and the less privileged, through contributions in-kind 
donations, volunteerism and community relations.

We are very thankful to SCAL for raising funds, 
through the charity golf tournament, to support HWAs 
cause and work.

HWA ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019 17



REHABILITATION 
SERVICES

9
Rehabilitation helps ensure inclusion, and participation 
in society, for people with disabilities. It includes 
provision of mobility devices, such as prostheses, 
orthoses, walking aids, and wheelchairs, together 
with therapy. HWA’s rehabilitation services have been 
providing therapy and integration programmes for 
people with physical disabilities since 1993. 

HWA operates two rehabilitation centres: one at 
Whampoa Drive, and another at Jurong Point 
shopping centre. 

These rehabilitation centres provide the following 
services.

1. Community Rehabilitation Programme

Clients who have been discharged from hospital 
and require continued rehabilitative exercises, 
and/or have recently been diagnosed with certain 
medical conditions, are included in this programme. 
Intensive programmes that help optimise their ability 
and functional independence are provided.

2. Maintenance Exercise Programme

Clients who have achieved optimal function through 
community rehabilitation are then enrolled into the 
Maintenance Exercise Programme. This programme 
helps clients maintain current functional levels, 
prevent/slow down age-related deterioration, and/
or keep them active at home and in the community.

3. Group Therapy

Clients with similar needs, such as those with high 
fall risk, are grouped together and undergo group 
activities involving social interaction.

4. Caregiver Training

Caregivers are trained to provide adequate care 
such as provision of home exercises and handling 
procedures. Caregiver burden/stress is assessed, 
and counselling services arranged, when necessary.

5. Activities of Daily Living (ADL) Training

Training for activities involved in daily living is provided 
in the Towards Independent Living (TIL) rooms to 
enhance clients’ confidence, independence, and 
competency in performing everyday tasks at home.

6. Home Visits and Community Integration

Rehabilitation centre staff often visit clients at home to 
assess home safety and clients’ in-house functional 
abilities. Recommendations are also made to 
enhance safety and increase clients’ independence 
at home. Our therapists will communicate these 
needs to the respective agencies to ensure a more 
accessible environment is created for clients.

The Community Integration Programme is designed 
to help PWDs optimise their personal and social 
competencies in order to live successfully in the 
community.

7. Device Prescription

Therapists assess clients’ needs and prescribe 
suitable assistive devices including splints, braces, 
walking aids, wheelchairs, motorised wheelchairs/
scooters, and adaptive devices that enhance 
functional independence.

8. Wheelchair and Scooter Training

Clients are trained to operate their new devices safely 
at indoor and outdoor environments.
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Beyond Rehabilitation Services...

• volunteers are trained from time to time based on 
the skills required for their job scopes;

• research ideas that are beneficial to people with 
different disabilities and/or geriatric sectors are 
developed; and

• HWA rehabilitation centres welcome student 
volunteers by having them shadow an experienced 
therapist.

Overview of activities from March 
2018 to April 2019

Throughout the year, HWA’s rehabilitation efforts 
continued to provide quality care to clients. In order 
to provide better quality service, HWA continued its 
partnership with various regulatory and consulting 
agencies involved in rehabilitation and disability 
issues such as Ministry of Health (MOH), Agency for 
Integrated Care (AIC),  voluntary welfare organisations 
(VWOs), and hospitals.

March 2018-April 2019 Highlights

Survey by an External Agency

AIC, through QS-First, has carried out satisfaction 
surveys for community care service providers to 
assess the level of client satisfaction with individual 
agencies, and gather suggestions for continual 
service improvement. Feedback gathered include 
understanding clients’ perceptions on specific aspects 
of service providers to identify areas for improvement 
and raise overall service standards and quality. HWA’s 
rehabilitation clients and caregivers were randomly 
selected for an interview. 

Both our rehabilitation centres scored well based on 
survey results received in August 2018.

• 95.8 per cent of respondents rated the centre 
“Good or Excellent” for Overall Satisfaction. 

• 100 per cent of respondents rated “Excellent” in 
the areas of Rehabilitation Environment, Transport 
Services, Feedback Channel, and Financial 
Assistance.

• 95.8 per cent of the respondents rated HWA’s 
rehabilitation centres “Good or Excellent” in Meeting 
their Care Needs, and 4.2 per cent of respondents 
rated “Satisfactory”.

• 91.7 per cent of respondents rated the staff “Good 
or Excellent”, whereas 8.3 per cent of respondents 
rated “Satisfactory”.

Quality Improvement 

HWA also embarked on quality improvement projects 
through AIC to further uplift our service standards. 
We created new Standard Operating Procedures and  
improved existing processes such as: 

1. a hand hygiene project;
2. equipment and inventory processes; 
3. fire safety protocols; and
4. an incident management and reporting system

with AIC in the year of 2018. HWA successfully met 
their requirements and received tokens of appreciation 
for its participation as well. 

Singapore Institute of Technology 

HWA was nominated as a clinical educator by the 
Singapore Institute of Technology (SIT) in July 2018 
and our therapists have successfully completed Clinical 
Practice Education Certification in November 2018. 
Thus, HWA stepped into the SIT Clinical Educator 
Programme which is valid from 1 March 2019 to 28 
February 2021 for SIT’s  physiotherapy and occupational 
therapy students. This is the first time HWA is accepting 
undergraduate students for the practice of physiotherapy 
and occupational therapy from SIT. 

In addition, HWA therapists were involved in the Allied 
Health Admission Exercise Programme in collaboration 
with SIT.
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Outing for Elderly and Caregivers  

Our elderly rehabilitation clients have benefited from 
four outings per year with the support of the Outings 
for Elderly Fund given by the Community Foundation 
of Singapore. These outings have provided our clients 
with opportunities to explore different places that they 
would seldom visit.

People’s Association also supported our caregivers by 
inviting them to the Chingay Parade 2019. 

Year-end Party (YEP)   

YEP gatherings bring happiness and excitement to 
members and staff alike. The 2018 year-end party at 
HWA Rehabilitation Centre (JP) was a joyful experience 
that included tasty food and group activities.

Services Rendered 

Our two rehabilitation centers served 324 rehabilitation 
clients and conducted 10,024 rehabilitation sessions in 
Financial Year (FY) ’18-’19. 

95 per cent of clients were surveyed half-yearly and 
they have rated our therapy service “(More than) 
Satisfied”. 

42 seniors were eligible to own a motorised scooter/
wheelchair after qualifying for the Senior Mobility Fund. 

71 training sessions were conducted at our centres 
and clients’ homes to ensure these seniors drive the 
newly prescribed scooters/motorised wheelchairs 
safely in public.

25 clients were prescribed assistive devices such 
as wheelchairs, hospital beds, pressure-relieving 
mattresses, study tables, etc. thanks to funding from 
SG Enable.

11 clients were provided mobility devices thanks to the 
Senior Mobility Fund. These devices include commode 
chairs, walking aids, wheelchairs, pressure-relieving 
mattresses, geriatric chairs, and hospital beds.

Facility Enhancement 

To provide a safe walkway for our rehabilitation clients, 
our corridors have been resurfaced with a special 
coating that provides better footwear grip.

An Automated External Defibrillator (AED) has also 
been installed on HWA premises, near our rehabilitation 
centre, in April 2018 for use in medical emergencies.

In March 2019, a new park bench was kindly donated 
and installed by Troop 07 of the Boy Scouts of 
America. It has been placed in the HWA Garden of 
Hope to encourage members to use the garden, and 
can be used by rehabilitation clients for group therapy 
activities.

Educational Workshop

HWA organised the Interactive Nutrition Workshop 
for its clients. The workshop, which includes a virtual 
supermarket tour and practice on reading food labels, 
is to encourage clients to choose the right food by 
reading nutritional information on food labels.

26 drivers/escorts also received training in wheelchair 
handling and safe transfer skills.
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TRANSPORT 
SERVICES

10

Many physically-challenged persons, as well as the 
frail elderly, need accessible and affordable transport to 
help ferry them to and from their work places, schools, 
hospital/clinics, as well as social and recreational sites. 
Without accessible and affordable transportation, they 
would be confined at home.

HWA believes that persons with disabilities should be 
given equal rights to transportation. We saw the need 
for a dedicated transport service, and thus started our 
own such service in 1980. Our vehicles are specially 
equipped with hydraulic lifts, providing a much needed 
transport service for people with mobility issues.

Currently, we provide the following transport schemes 
and related services:

• Dial-A-Ride (DAR) Service

• Taxi Subsidy Scheme (TSS)

• Rehabilitation Transport Service

• Chartered Transport Service

• Handicare Cab Scheme

• Driving Instruction Service

 
Dial-A-Ride (DAR)

This scheme is a door-to-door transportation service 
which uses minibuses equipped with accessible 
features to transport wheelchair-using passengers. 

It is an accessible transport service available to all 
persons with physical disabilities, who have difficulty 
making use of existing means of public transport.

We are fully aware that transport is of paramount 
importance to persons with physical disabilities. We 
will continue to monitor and evaluate this transport 
service so as to achieve optimum usage of available 
resources, and to reduce the chances of denial or 
deprivation of medical consultations due to transport 
problems.

Taxi Subsidy Scheme (TSS)

Provision of a highly subsidised monthly transport 
service by HWA has enabled members to seek 
employment and continue staying employed. This 
service has also been extended to some children 
with disabilities, and who require this service to attend 
school. We are glad to report that as of end March 
2019, 45 people have benefited from this monthly 
transport service, and we have provided 19,324 trips 
under this scheme during the same year.

Rehabilitation Transport

This collective transport system is a door-to-door 
service which uses accessible minibuses to ferry our 
clients to and from our two rehabilitation centres daily. 
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Chartered Transport

Chartered transport is the provision of accessible 
transport to various agencies. Agencies can charter 
our vehicles to ferry their clients during their outings/
activities. This service is available daily.

Bookings for our chartered services are received from 
individuals, and profit & non-profit organisations. In the 
year reviewed, we completed 2,414 trips for chartered 
service.

Handicare Cab Scheme

HWA continues to partner ComfortDelGro Corporation 
Limited to provide PWDs with a convenient way to 
travel. The Handicare Cab Scheme (or “Handicare”) 
has helped to alleviate the frustration faced by 
commuters with physical disabilities, who often 
encounter difficulties getting a taxi, especially during 
peak traffic timings. This scheme was launched  
in 1999.

The provision of Citycab and Comfort taxis under 
this scheme fulfils the mobility needs of our clients, 
who are dependent on taxis for transport to and from 
places of employment, education, medical treatment/
consultation, and rehabilitation. A total of 1,649 trips 
was completed between January and December 2018.

MINISTRY-FUNDED PROGRAMMES

Ministry of Health (MOH)

MOH Subvention Fund for Medical Escort/Transport 
Service

This fund provides medical escort and/or transport 
services so that our clients can continue to live 
amongst the community despite their frail conditions. It 
also supports working and frail caregivers taking care 
of old and/or frail clients. 

We had previously supported this scheme with a total 
of six vans: three for the central region, and three for 
the western region of Singapore. Currently, we are 
only supporting the central region of Singapore.

In the year reviewed, we served 387 clients (living 
in central Singapore and Bukit Batok), and provided 
them with 8,736 trips.

AIC – Regional Centralised Transport Service and 
Centre-Based Support

This two-way transport service is for clients requiring 
transport to and from participating centres within the 
Regional Health System (RHS).

Driving Instruction Service

The driving instruction service for PWDs was 
introduced in 1984, via a project intended to enhance 
the mobility of PWDs and promote social integration 
through acquisition of driving skills.

Our driving instruction cars were donated by the Land 
Transport Authority (LTA) in 2001, 2012, and 2018. We 
are glad to report that to date, we have three driving 
instructors supporting us in driving instruction and 
assessment. They are Mr. Loh Lian Choon, Mr. Alan 
Tan, and Mr. Sim Wee How .

We are also collaborating with Comfort Driving 
Centre (Ubi) and Singapore Safety Driving Centre 
(Woodlands), who have graciously allowed our driving 
instructors to conduct lessons and tests on their 
premises at no cost. 

On a separate note, besides supporting Tan Tock 
Seng Hospital (TTSH) in the Driving Assessment 
and Rehabilitation Program (DARP),  HWA is also 
supporting Alexandra Healthcare (AHC).

All PWD learners enrolled for driving lessons in the 
year reviewed successfully passed the driving test 
conducted by the Traffic Police.
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We currently support two centres in the central region 
(cluster 8) with five vans and two centres on the 
centre-based support scheme with two vans. To date, 
the participating centres we have supported are:

• SPD @ Toa Payoh
• Ren Ci Hospital
•  Ren Ci @ Ang Mo Kio nursing home
•  Assisi Hospice

In the year reviewed, we provided 13,547 trips under 
this service.

Ministry of Social and Family 
Development (MSF) 

Grant to Provide a Dedicated Transport Service for 
Persons with Disabilities

The objectives of the grant are:

• to expand the capacity of dedicated transport 
service to PWDs, who are attending services such 
as the Early Intervention Programme for Infants and 
Children (EIPIC) programme, Special Education 
(SPED) schools, Day Activity Centres (DACs), and 
sheltered workshops; and

• to improve the quality and efficiency of the dedicated 
transport service for PWDs attending these services.

To date, we have supported both workers and 
students with disabilities from mainstream schools, 
MINDS (Lorong Napiri), Celebral Palsy School, and 
Eden Centre for Adults (Clementi).

Ridership Report 2018/2019

HWA Programmes � 9,276

TSS � 19,324

Rehab Tpt � 10,401

MET � 8,736

AIC Centralised Tpt � 13,547

Centre-Based Support � 5,651

Tripartite Work Group  
(LTA-VWO-PTO) on Introduction 
of Wheelchair Accessible Buses 

(WABs)

HWA is currently a member of the tripartite work group 
offering feedback on modifications to bus stops and 
interchanges, and public education and operational 
issues relevant to the introduction of wheelchair 
accessible buses.  

As of 31 March 2019, all SBS Transit, SMRT, and Go-
Ahead bus services are wheelchair accessible. All 26 
Tower Transit bus services serving west Singapore are 
wheelchair friendly as well.
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HOME CARE 
SERVICES

11
The Home Care Services (HCS) department has been 
under MOH-subvented funding programmes since April 
2018. The department is a multi-ethnic, multi-cultural, 
and multi-disciplinary team of healthcare professionals 
dedicated to improving the quality of life of our elderly 
clients, particularly those with mobility issues. 

Supported by the Tote Board Community Healthcare 
Fund (TBCHF) from April 2015 to March 2018, a pilot 
project for three years, the department aimed to provide 
comprehensive yet tailored services to assist relevant 
individuals in achieving maximum independence in 
their own homes, at times that are favourable to them, 
and in ways they find comfortable, for as long as the 
help is needed. 

Our services are aimed at providing a viable alternative 
to long-term institutionalisation and/or admission 
into a nursing care facility. In delivering our services, 
we adopt a multi-disciplinary approach involving 
medical practitioners, nurses, therapists, and nursing 
assistants. These professionals render the most 
appropriate preventive, primary, acute and/or long-
term care services, and needs-based rehabilitative 
support where possible. 

We believe that effective home care is best personalised 
and suitably efficient. This involves reducing the 
client’s commuting expenses, as well as the hassle 
of being served by multiple healthcare providers. Our 
service fees depend on the client’s per capita family 
income, and are typically highly subsidised. Additional 
in-house subsidies are extended to financially needy 
beneficiaries on a case by case basis.

MOH Audit of HWA’s Home Care 
Services Department

We are pleased to share that, as at 31 January 2018, 
we have successfully passed Preparatory Assessment 
set by MOH. HWA has since been appointed as 
a service provider in this area/field, and has been 
receiving subvention support from MOH with effect 
from 1 April 2018. 
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Service Types and Dimensions

Our doctors, nurses, or therapists typically conduct a 
comprehensive assessment of each potential client to 
determine and plan the services needed to address 
the individual’s specific health and psycho-social 
needs. We aim to help the elderly, and adults with 
physical disabilities, to remain living at their respective 
homes, while providing them with affordable nursing 
care which can include long-term basic domestic care. 

Our scope of services pertains to the following:

a) Home Medical

b) Home Nursing

c) Home Therapy

d) Home Personal Care 

  A)  HOME MEDICAL 

• Routine home visits by our medical doctor once a 
month

• Comprehensive care assessment conducted on 
first visit

• Management of chronic medical conditions
• Prescription of chronic condition medications
• Education of client or caregiver on the client’s 

medical conditions and management plan

  B)  HOME NURSING

• Post-surgical management
• Wound management
• Maintenance/changing of urinary catheters/

drainage tubes
• Stoma care
• Insertion of nasogastric tube and tube feeding
• Assistance with bowel elimination
• Monitoring client’s medical parameters
• Training for caregiver
• Monitoring medication compliance and proper 

taking of medication
• Administering and packing of medications

  C)  HOME THERAPY (ACTIVE, MAINTENANCE  
         & ENVIRONMENT) 

(i)   Physiotherapy

• Functional mobility and gait training
• Active and passive exercises to improve or restore 

range of motions, physical strength, flexibility, 
coordination, balance, and endurance

• Advise on the use of assistive ambulatory devices
• Client and caregiver training and education

(ii)   Occupational Therapy

• Re-training in activities of daily living
• Exercises and graded activities to improve strength 

and range of motions

• Coordination and dexterity activities
• Advise on the use of orthosis, prosthesis, or 

assistive/adaptive devices
• Advise on occupational ergonomics
• Home assessment and recommendations on home 

modifications
• Wheelchair and seating assessment 

  D)  HOME PERSONAL CARE

(i) Personal Hygiene

• Bathing/assisted bathing/sponging
• Changing of clothes, undergarments, continence 

aids, and soiled sheets
• Brushing of teeth and cleaning of dentures
• Toileting and other elimination needs

(ii) Support/assistance with Activities of Daily 
Living and Other Personal Care tasks

• Lifting, transferring, and positioning of client
• Assisting in light housekeeping and laundry

(iii) Performing simple maintenance exercises (as 
prescribed by registered therapists) 

Our home care services team has served 180 clients 
and completed 5,641 sessions from April 2018 to 
March 2019.

A survey we conducted showed that most clients have 
generally benefited from such care by our dedicated 
team, who have gone the extra mile to care for their 
charges. Such services could assist individuals wishing 
to shorten a hospital stay by providing day-to-day 
assistance and therapeutic services in the comfort of 
their homes. Such services also benefit their families as 
the extra pair of eyes and ears are a means of respite 
to family member caregivers, who have to tend to their 
own needs occasionally. A number of our clients and/or 
their caregivers have also recommended our services 
to their peers with similar needs and profiles. 

With Singapore’s population ageing even more rapidly, 
an ensuing rising demand for home care services 
seems inevitable. We remain optimistic that we will 
set out to provide the best possible affordable home-
based care to cater to the needs and preferences 
of clients looking to receive home support whilst 
continuing to live, for as long as possible, amidst the 
familiar comforts of their own community.    
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SOCIAL SERVICE & 
INTEGRATION

12
HWA’s Social Service department serves as the 
immediate point of contact, and liaison, between the 
Association and its ever-growing pool of Members 
(who are all PWDs). It is aimed at helping its Members 
better integrate into mainstream society, thereby 
further empowering PWDs to experience and enjoy 
greater, and more meaningful and rewarding, social 
inclusion and engagement. 

Among the services rendered by the department are:
• Information on, and referral of, community resources.
• Loans of mobility and independent living aids to 

members and also the general public.
• Financial subsidies to members for the purchase of 

mobility and independent living aids. 
• Financial assistance to the needier households, in 

the form of food-in-kind.
• Membership applications and liaisons. 
• Other ad-hoc, Member-related services.
• Social integration events, opportunities and outings. 

Loans of Mobility and Independent 
Living Aids 

Such a scheme is meant to assist the community with 
short-term assistive equipment loan. Wheelchairs, 
walking frames and/or other assistive devices, are 
available on loan for a token administrative charge 
(largely to defray the costs of the mobility/independent 
living aids).

Social Integration 

HWA’s social engagement activities serve as a platform 
or avenue for its Members to go on social outings 
and interact effectively, and meaningfully, with other 
Members too, so they could be better empowered 
and encouraged, to lead a more active and outgoing 
lifestyle, and take part in purposeful and enriching 
social activities. 

We held our annual Year-end Party on Sunday, 2 
December 2018, at the Suntec Singapore International 
Convention and Exhibition Centre. The gathering 
incorporated a fundraising angle, whereby we 
approached well-meaning individuals and organisations 
for their kind and generous sponsorships of the lunch 
tables and/or generous donations to support our work. 

This event saw our many Members, along with guests, 
invitees (including our Founder Members and present 
Executive Committee) and staff and volunteers turn 
out in force and revel in the festive merrymaking 
and sumptuous spread of food.  We would like to 
express our heartfelt appreciation, in particular, to 
LEE FOUNDATION, MELLFORD PTE LTD and 
AEROSPEC SUPPLIES PTE LTD for their kind and 
significant donations towards this annual celebration.

Our Association has also organised activities and 
gatherings, to better engage and support our Members 
(and Beneficiaries too, wherever possible). 

These activities include, and are not limited to, outings 
to specific places of interest, art painting appreciation 
workshops and movie outings. On this note, HWA is 
also indebted to its partnering organisations and/or 
sponsors for having made all these possible, and who 
have contributed in one way or another to render their 
support of our cause and work. These organisations 
include, not exhaustively, SAFRA and YMCA 
Singapore.   
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HWA’s Assistance with  
SMRT’s Taxi Vouchers  

HWA’s Social Service department has assisted 20 HWA 
beneficiaries in obtaining the free SMRT taxi vouchers 
in 2018. These beneficiaries are needy clients who 
were recommended by HWA’s two rehab centres and 
who are actively involved in HWA’s activities. Each of 
them was issued $100 taxi vouchers. 

SMRT’s Gift of Mobility programme is a key initiative 
of its corporate social responsibility pillar. The taxi 
vouchers administered under this programme to help 
clients use taxi services for medical follow-ups in 
hospitals, going to job interviews and travelling to work 
places. The programme aims to improve the quality of 
life of the physically disabled people by providing the 
necessary financial assistance. 

HWA thanks SMRT Corporation Ltd for its generous 
and much valued support of the disability cause.

Medical Escort Transport Service 
(Ministry of Health – subvented)

Last but not least, between April 2018 and March 2019, 
Case Management has successfully admitted 156 new 
cases - averaging 13 cases per month.  Out of these, 
63 per cent of the total admission (or 98 new cases), 
required escort service is required as clients are single, 
frail & elderly, or lack sufficient family support.

Launched in November 2014 and subsidised by MOH, 
HWA’s medical escort transport scheme aims to meet 
the needs of PWDs and/or senior citizens who may 
not be able to utilise public transport for their medical 
appointments.

HWA’s Inclusion in the Annual 
Purple Parade 2018

Organised by Central CDC, the Purple Parade 2018 
was held on Saturday 27 October, at the Suntec 
Convention Centre. Twenty members of HWA 
together with American School Scouts attended 
the annual event. The Purple Parade is, arguably, 
Singapore’s largest annual gathering of like-minded 
people, seeking to advocate greater inclusion in 
Singapore and celebrating the abilities of the Special 
Needs communities here. HWA’s own contingent 
formed a part of the 10,000-strong crowd that turned 
out in force to endorse the Parade. 

HWA’s Assistance for the Assistive 
Technology Fund

HWA’s Social Service department has assisted HWA 
Members (and a few non-members) with obtaining 
the Assistive Technology Fund (ATF), aimed at 
providing subsidies for PWDs to purchase Assistive 
Technology devices to enable their independent living.

A total of 34 applications, in this respect, have been 
sent from HWA to SG Enable, between June 2018 and 
end-March 2019.
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Integration and Advocacy… 
The journey continues…

HWA continues to work with various government 
institutions, corporate partners, social service 
organisations, educational institutions and individuals 
to address the issues on creating accessibility 
provisions and opportunities for people with 
disabilities. HWA had represented in a committee set 
up by the Building & Construction Authority (BCA) to 
look into issues pertaining to accessibility. HWA also 
represents in the Singapore Disability Sports Council 
(SDSC) supporting and promoting sports for people 
with disabilities. We have given our comments and 
feedback on various 
platforms on disability 
issues as and when these 
were deemed necessary. 

While upgrading its own 
driving training cars with 
more technologically 
advanced electronics 
driving training gadgets to accommodate various 
functional needs of people with disabilities, who want 
to learn driving, HWA has been partnering with various 
institutions on disabled driving training assessments. 
HWA continues to work with various authorities 
to facilitate more accessible provisions on public 
transport system and conducted site assessments of 
various new transport interchanges.

HWA strongly believes that support structure and 
integration for people with disabilities with his/her 
peers and environment should be established at an 
early age. Hence, HWA continues to engage primary 
and secondary school students in disability awareness 
programmes, so they could better understand issues 
and become more responsible community partners. 
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P G Wee Partnership LLP (UEN: T13LL0036E)

P G Wee Partnership LLP (registration number T13LL0036E) is an accounting limited liability partnership registered in Singapore with limited liability under the Limited Liability Partnerships Act (Chapter 163A).
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P G Wee Partnership LLP (UEN: T13LL0036E)

P G Wee Partnership LLP (registration number T13LL0036E) is an accounting limited liability partnership registered in Singapore with limited liability under the Limited Liability Partnerships Act (Chapter 163A).
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P G Wee Partnership LLP (UEN: T13LL0036E)

P G Wee Partnership LLP (registration number T13LL0036E) is an accounting limited liability partnership registered in Singapore with limited liability under the Limited Liability Partnerships Act (Chapter 163A).
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the financial year ended 31 March 2019

Unrestricted Fund

Designated Funds Total Total

Note General Program and
Services

Home Care
Service

2019 2018

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

INCOMING RESOURCES
Voluntary Income
Government Grant Subsidies 112,469 - - 112,469 147,132
Handicare cab scheme - - - - 5,000
Care and Share Fund 13 507,596 - - 507,596 -
Deferred capital grants amortised 19 - 170,951 - 170,951 147,460
Donation - Non-tax exempt 8,620 - - 8,620 35,232
Donation -Tax exempt - 75,359 - 75,359 120,675
Community Silver Trust Fund 478,038 153,591 - 631,629 639,790

Fund Generating Income
Fund raising income 4 2,625,373 - - 2,625,373 2,255,085
Transport operation funds - 122,064 - 122,064 157,255

Charity Income
Program and services fee income 5 - 1,518,215 - 1,518,215 1,644,253
Home care service income - - 37,269 37,269 709,346
MOH Subvention - 652,575 436,587 1,089,162 552,227

Administrative Income

Administrative cost recovery 997,662 - - 997,662 977,084

Interest Income 43,272 - - 43,272 46,047

Other Income

Special employment credit 95,058 85,976 - 181,034 266,341

Total incoming resources 4,868,088 2,778,731 473,856 8,120,675 7,702,927
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the financial year ended 31 March 2019

Unrestricted Fund

DesignatedFunds Total Total

Note General Program and
Services

Home Care
Service

2019 2018

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

RESOURCES EXPENDED

Cost of Fund Generating Activities

Fund raising Expenses 286,052 - - 286,052 286,598

Cost of Charitable Activities

Depreciation of plant and equipment 8 46,133 291,763 1,130 339,026 348,864

GST expenses 11,424 69,392 7,553 88,369 115,967

Licence/ subscription 175,323 - - 175,323 167,649

Printing, stationery and postage 19,044 7,471 537 27,052 25,651

Other operating expenses - 249,955 36,025 285,980 215,916

Rental of equipment 11,258 - - 11,258 9,526

Repair and maintenance 92,939 6,466 - 99,405 59,466

Staff CPF, SDL and FWL 7 100,551 355,567 71,598 527,716 513,850

Staff salaries and bonus 7 803,593 2,917,714 466,764 4,188,071 4,181,397

Staff benefit 7 9,736 9,245 19,370 38,351 113,830

Telecommunication 12,370 29,244 2,871 44,485 46,710

Upkeep of motor vehicles - 300,594 - 300,594 310,440

Utilities and service charges 42,959 56,351 - 99,310 100,719
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the financial year ended 31 March 2019

Unrestricted Fund

Designated Funds Total Total

Note General Program and
Services

Home Care
Service

2019 2018

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

Administrative Expenses

Auditor's remuneration 10,222 - 1,050 11,272 9,260

Bank charges 6,762 - - 6,762 6,394

Gift and souvenirs - - - - 55

Insurance 19,748 120,134 - 139,882 159,558

Plant and equipment written off 8 - - 8 1,223

Professional fee 3,400 - - 3,400 750

Recruitment expenses 200 2,033 - 2,233 1,959

Translation of circulars - - - - 20

AGM, annual report expenses 6,296 - - 6,296 11,241

Administrative cost apportionment 38,648 844,043 114,971 997,662 977,084

Total Resources Expended 1,696,666 5,259,972 721,869 7,678,507 7,664,127

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year 3,171,422 (2,481,241) (248,013) 442,168 38,800

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 March 2019

Note 2019 2018

SGD SGD

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Plant and Equipment 8 3,973,425 3,880,932

Fixed Deposit 11 1,031,367 1,062,437

Total Non-Current Assets 5,004,792 4,943,369

Current Assets

Inventories 3,928 33,154

Trade and Other Receivables 9 486,143 2,252,912

Other Assets 10 302,322 274,552

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 9,461,818 8,321,410

Total Current Assets 10,254,211 10,882,028

Total Assets 15,259,003 15,825,397

Funds

Unrestricted Fund

General Fund 7,543,156 7,100,988

Total Unrestricted Fund 7,543,156 7,100,988

Restricted Funds

Development and Maintenance of HWA Premises Fund 12 2,840,818 2,840,818

Care and Share Fund 13 1,017,079 1,282,312

HWA -Micro Finance Assistance Scheme 14 52,600 51,000

Scholarship Fund 15 68,088 68,088

HWA -Rotary Skills Assistance Fund 16 54,006 54,006

Community Silver Trust Fund 17 1,795,282 2,452,492

Mr & Mrs Wong Financial Assistance Fund 18 3,398 -

Total Restricted Funds 5,831,271 6,748,716

Total Funds 13,374,427 13,849,704

Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred Capital Grants 19 1,172,697 1,215,017

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,172,697 1,215,017

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 20 619,664 573,357

Other Liabilities 21 92,215 77,330

Advance Subsidies 22 - 109,989

Total Current Liabilities 711,879 760,676

Total Liabilities 1,884,576 1,975,693

Total Fund and Liabilities 15,259,003 15,825,397

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2019

Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
Fund

General
Fund

Development
and

Maintenance
of HWA

Premise
Fund

Care and
Share
Fund

HWA -
Micro

Finance
Assistance

Scheme

Scholarship
Fund

HWA -
Rotary
Skills

Assistance
Fund

Communit
y Silver

Trust
Fund

Mr & Mrs
Wong

Financial
Assistance

Fund

Total

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

Note 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

Balance as at 1 April 2017 7,062,188 2,840,818 1,423,033 49,800 68,088 54,006 999,667 - 12,497,600

Surplus for the Year 38,800 - - - - - - - 38,800

Net Movement for the Year - - (140,721) 1,200 - - 1,452,825 - 1,313,304

Balance as at
31 March 2018 and 1 April
2018

7,100,988 2,840,818 1,282,312 51,000 68,088 54,006 2,452,492 - 13,849,704

Surplus for the Year 442,168 - - - - - - - 442,168

Net Movement for the Year - - (265,233) 1,600 - - (657,210) 3,398 (917,445)

Balance as at 31 March
2019

7,543,156 2,840,818 1,017,079 52,600 68,088 54,006 1,795,282 3,398 13,374,427

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2019

Note 2019 2018

SGD SGD

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Surplus For the Year 442,168 38,800

Adjustments For:

Amortisation of Deferred Capital Grants (170,951) (147,460)

Depreciation of Plant and Equipment 8 545,868 509,032

Plant and Equipment Written Off 8 1,223

Interest Income (43,272) (46,047)

Operating Surplus Before Working Capital Changes 773,821 355,548

Inventories 29,226 (5,602)

Trade and Other Receivables 1,766,769 (124,150)

Other Assets (27,770) (5,899)

Trade and Other Payables 46,307 19,843

Other Liabilities 14,885 (22,750)

Advance Subsidies (109,989) -

Net Cash (Used In) Generated From Operating
Activities

2,493,249 216,990

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Deferred Capital Grants 128,631 107,888

Care and Share Fund (265,233) (140,721)

HWA -Micro Finance Assistance Scheme 1,600 1,200

Finance Assistance Fund 3,398 -

Community Silver Trust (657,210) 1,452,825

Net Cash Generated From Financing Activities (788,814) 1,421,192

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Long Term Deposits Redeemed/ (Placed) 31,070 (1,062,437)

Interest Income 43,272 46,047

Purchase of Plant and Equipment (638,369) (403,224)

Transfer to Restricted Cash (341) (340)

Net Cash Generated From (Used In) Investing
Activities

(564,368) (1,419,954)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,140,067 218,228

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 8,184,834 7,966,606

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 11 9,324,901 8,184,834

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2019

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.

1. General Information

Handicaps Welfare Association is registered as a society and charity under the Charities Act, Chapter
37 on 18 December 1969 and 25 February 1985 respectively. The Charity was accorded the status of
an Institution of Public Character (IPC) for the period from 1 October 2016 to 30 September 2019.
The Charity's registered office is located at 16 Whampoa Drive Singapore 327725. The Charity is
situated in Singapore.

The Committee of Management approved and authorised these financial statements for issue.

The principal activities of the Charity are to promote social and welfare services for people with
physical disabilities and in particular to foster friendship, understanding and mutual assistance
amongst its members. The Charity provides island-wide service to support elderly and people with
physical disabilities with Transport service, Rehabilitation, Home Healthcare, Education, Training,
Employment and other interests of this community.

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Charity have been prepared in accordance with applicable Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

The financial statements expressed in Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) are prepared in accordance with the
historical cost convention except as disclosed, where appropriate, in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the financial year. Although these estimates are based on management committee's
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except in the
current financial year, the Charity has adopted all the new and revised standards and interpretations
of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. The
adoption of these standards did not have any material effect on the financial performance or position
of the Charity. Had there been any adjustments made, the Charity will apply the modified
retrospective approach during the transition period.

Funds

The Charity maintains restricted and unrestricted funds. Funds set up for specific purposes are
classified as restricted funds. All income and expenses other than those attributable to restricted
funds and common overheads are recorded in the unrestricted fund's statement of financial activities.

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available
to the Charity, the financial statements of the Charity are maintained substantially in accordance with
the principles of “fund accounting” whereby the resources for various purposes are classified for
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accounting and reporting purposes into specific funds that are in accordance with activities or
objectives specified.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Charity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Singapore Dollar (“SGD”), which is the Charity's functional and presentation currency.

All financial information presented are denominated in Singapore Dollar unless otherwise stated.

Incoming Resources

These accounting policies are applied on and after the initial application date of FRS 115, 1 April 2018.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Charity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised when the Charity satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A
performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue
recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

(a) Rendering of Services

Revenue generated from social activities, transport services, events and programmes are recognised
when services are rendered.

(b) Donations

Donations are recognised as and when received, except for committed donation that are deferred as
liabilities until the Charity is able to meet the terms of the donations.

(c) Fund Raising Projects

Income from fund raising projects are recognised as and when received. If income is received for a
specific fund-raising project and the project has not yet occurred, the income received will be deferred
as a liability until the project has been conducted.

(d) Grants and Subsidies

Subventions and grants from government and other organisations are recognised as income only
when there is sufficient evidence that the Charity has complied with the conditions attached to them
and there is reasonable certainty that they will be received. These subventions and grants are
recognised on an accrual basis. Additionally, subventions and grants recognised in the statement of
financial activities are calculated based on the funding principles set by the individual organisations.
Adjustments to the subventions and grants which are made on finalisation by the relevant
organisations are recognised in the statement of financial activities in the financial year in which they
are finalised. Subventions and grants with specific conditions are recognised either when they have
been conformed to, or when there is sufficient evidence that they wil be met. In instances where there
is uncertainty about the ability of the Charity to meet the conditions set by grantors, the recognitions of
the grants as income is deferred until conditions imposed at the time of the grants can be complied
with.

(e) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method.
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These accounting policies are applied before the initial application date of FRS 115, 1 April 2018.

(a) Rendering of Services

Revenue generated from social activities, events and programmes are recognised when services are
rendered.

(b) Donations

Donations and income from fund raising projects are recognised in the financial statements as and
when received.

(c) Grants and Subsidies

Grants and subsidies are recognised as income to match the related expenditure.

(d) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest rate method.

Grants

Grants from government for the purchase of plant and equipment are taken to the deferred capital
grants account. Deferred capital grants are recognised in the statement of financial activities on a
systematic basis over the periods necessary to match the depreciation of plant and equipment which
they are intended to compensate. On disposal of the plant and equipment, the balance of the related
grants is recognised in the statement of financial activities to match the net book value of the plant
and equipment disposed of.

Grants in respect of the current year’s operating expenses are recognised as income in the same
year. Grants which are received but not utilised are included in the grants received in advance
account. Grants are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Retirement Benefit Costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recorded as an expense as they fall
due. Contributions made to government managed retirement benefit plan such as the Central
Provident Fund (“CPF”) which specifies the employer’s obligations are dealt with as defined
contribution retirement benefit plans.

Income Tax

The Charity is a registered Charity under Charities Act 1982 and is exempted from income tax.

Operating Leases

Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to
be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of the assets over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives have been taken as follows:

Office furniture, renovation and equipment - 2 to 12 years
Motor vehicles - 5 to 10 years
Rehabilitation equipment and mobility aids - 5 to 10 years

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate, at end of each reporting year. The effects of any revision are recognised in profit or loss
when the changes arise.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use.

On disposal of an item of plant and equipment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
its carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Charity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is
required, the Charity makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
written down to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss be
recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories consisting of consumables stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in
first-out basis.
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Financial Assets

(a) These accounting policies are applied on and after the initial application date of FRS 109, 1 April
2018:

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when the entity becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

At initial recognition, the Charity measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Charity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third party, if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing
component at initial recognition.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

Investments in debt instruments

Debt instruments of the Charity mainly comprise of cash and bank deposits and trade and other
receivables.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Charity’s business model for
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. The three
measurement categories for classification of debt instruments are amortised cost, FVOCI and FVPL.
The Charity only has debt instruments at amortised cost.

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecognised or impaired, and through the
amortisation process.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has
expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income for debt instruments is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) These accounting policies are applied before the initial application date of FRS 109, 1 April 2018:

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Charity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to received cash flows from the asset
has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received an any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade
date i.e. the date that the Charity commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
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sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and Receivables

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the
amortisation process.

Impairment of Financial Assets

(a) These accounting policies are applied on and after the initial application date of FRS 109, 1 April
2018:

The Charity recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not
held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Charity expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is recognised for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Charity applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the
Charity does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Charity has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment which could affect debtors’ ability to pay.

The Charity considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Charity may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Charity is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Charity. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

(b) These accounting policies are applied before the initial application date of FRS 109, 1 April 2018:

The Charity assesses at end of each reporting year whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired.

Assets Carried at Amortised Cost

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced
directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance
account are written off against the carrying value of the financial asset. To determine whether there is
objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, the Charity
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor
and default or significant delay in payments.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
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recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This includes cash on hand and fixed deposits with financial institutions.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Charity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value of the consideration received plus, in the case of a financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is extinguished.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are reviewed at end of each reporting year and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Critical Judgement, Assumption and Estimation Uncertainties

The preparation of the Charity's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

Judgements made in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Charity accounting policies, the Charity has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statement.

Useful Lives of Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
management committees anticipate the useful lives of these plant and equipment to be within 2 to 12
years. The carrying amount of the Charity's plant and equipment at 31 March 2019 is disclosed in
Note 8 to the financial statements. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological
developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

Expected Credit Losses on Trade Receivables

Expected credit losses (ECLs) are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses over the life of a
financial instrument. In estimating ECLs to determine the probability of default of its debtors, the
company has used historical information, such as past credit loss experience. Where applicable,
historical data are adjusted to reflect the effects of current conditions as well as management’s
assessment of future economic conditions based on observable market information, which involved
significant estimates and judgement.
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As at the statement of financial position, the company does not have any trade receivables that are
subject to ECLs.

3. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

FRS 24 defines a related party as a person or entity that is related to the reporting entity and it
includes (a) A person or a close member of that person's family if that person: (i) has control or joint
control over the reporting entity; (ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or (iii) is a
member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.
(b) An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply: (i) The entity and
the reporting entity are members of the same group. (ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity. (iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (iv) One entity is a joint
venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity. (v) The entity is a post-
employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related
to the reporting entity. (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a). (vii)
A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

3.1 Related Parties:

There are transactions and arrangements between the reporting entity and related parties and the
effects of these on the basis determined the parties are reflected in these financial statements. The
current related party balances are unsecured, without fixed repayment terms and interest unless
stated otherwise.

3.2 Key Management Personnel:

Key management personnel compensation included in staff cost is as follows:

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Wages, salaries and staff benefits 178,463 176,416

Contributions to defined contribution plans 17,363 17,493

195,826 193,909

The Committee of Management is the final authority and is overall responsible for policy making and
determination of all activities. They are volunteers and receive no monetary remuneration for their
contribution.

The Charity's key executive remuneration is disclosed in the following band:

Number of key
executives

2019 2018

Annual salary range

SGD 150,000 to SGD 200,000 1 1

1 1

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Charity, directly or indirectly.

3.3 Board Members Remuneration

Charity has disclosed that board members do not receive any remuneration except for reimbursement
for out-of-pocket expenses.
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4. Fund Raising Income

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Fa Cai Cup 42,900 13,200

Donation boxes collections 37,869 41,377

Donation draw 360,720 231,865

Donation in kind - 11,440

E-net donation 37,219 31,590

Flag day 354,363 314,069

Golf Charity Day Donation 263,200 180,125

Hongbao project 748,739 690,052

Recycle project 33,556 36,640

Online donation portal 34,294 66,008

SI Events donation 361,133 315,169

Special projects -General appeal 2,964 5,590

Wheel, walk or jog 348,416 317,960

2,625,373 2,255,085

5. Program and Services Fee Income

Social
Service

Department

Transport
Department

Rehabilitation
Department

2019 2018

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

AIC centralised transport - 689,718 - 689,718 512,218

Dial-a-ride income - 168,320 - 168,320 206,125

Driving income - 22,275 - 22,275 24,580

Internal billing for staff request - 9,420 - 9,420 7,780

Medical escort transport services - 72,099 - 72,099 66,253

Member's subscription/entrance fee 4,448 - - 4,448 5,217

Monthly transport income - - - - 132,328

Rehabilitation fees - - 166,166 166,166 348,978

Rehabilitation transport fee - 170,805 - 170,805 177,529

Rental of vehicle income - 205,193 - 205,193 152,940

Sale of gadgets - 6,164 - 6,164 6,688

Other income 3,536 71 - 3,607 3,617

7,984 1,344,065 166,166 1,518,215 1,644,253

6. Program and Services Fee Expenses

Social
Service

Department

Transport
Department

Rehabilitation
Department

2019 2018

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

Administrative cost apportionment 37,589 624,354 182,100 844,043 919,609

Depreciation - 269,864 21,900 291,764 280,867

GST expenses 215 56,943 12,233 69,391 89,864
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Insurance - 120,134 - 120,134 131,121

Other operating expenses 113,005 129,688 6,942 249,635 186,163

Printing, stationery and postage 4,454 1,444 1,573 7,471 7,822

Recruitment expenses 260 - 2,032 2,292 1,840

Repair and maintenance - - 6,466 6,466 3,591

Staff benefit 552 23,992 (15,238) 9,306 78,837

Staff CPF, SDL, FWL 20,283 258,747 64,773 343,803 344,181

Staff salaries and bonuses 116,342 2,029,766 649,569 2,795,677 2,911,912

Telecommunication 717 23,766 4,761 29,244 30,077

Upkeep of motor vehicles - 300,594 - 300,594 310,440

Utilities and services charges - - 56,351 56,351 55,466

Total expenses 293,417 3,839,292 993,462 5,126,171 5,351,790

7. Staff Costs

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Contributions to defined contribution plan (“CPF”), Skills
Development Levy (“SDL”) and Foreign Worker Levy (“FWL”) 527,716 513,850

Salaries and bonus 4,188,071 4,181,397

Staff benefit 38,351 113,830

4,754,138 4,809,077

8. Plant and Equipment

Office Furniture,
Renovation and

Equipment

Motor Vehicles Rehabilitation
Equipment

and Mobility Aids

Total

SGD SGD SGD SGD

Cost

At 1.4.2017 2,163,358 3,882,211 219,965 6,265,534

Additions 124,879 248,285 30,060 403,224

Disposals (2,996) (45,176) - (48,172)

At 31.3.2018 and 1.4.2018 2,285,241 4,085,320 250,025 6,620,586

Additions 107,140 528,729 2,500 638,369

Disposals - (395,084) - (395,084)

At 31.3.2019 2,392,381 4,218,965 252,525 6,863,871

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1.4.2017 470,143 1,727,801 79,626 2,277,570

Depreciation for year 208,611 278,627 21,794 509,032

Disposals (1,772) (45,176) - (46,948)

At 31.3.2018 and 1.4.2018 676,982 1,961,252 101,420 2,739,654

Depreciation for year 210,703 312,143 23,022 545,868

Disposals - (395,076) - (395,076)

At 31.3.2019 887,685 1,878,319 124,442 2,890,446

Net Carrying Amount

At 31.3.2019 1,504,696 2,340,646 128,083 3,973,425

At 31.3.2018 1,608,259 2,124,068 148,605 3,880,932
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Depreciation included in statement of financial activities is as follows:

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Expenditure of generating voluntary income and governance costs 339,026 348,864

Care and share fund (Note 13) 181,260 140,721

Community Silver Trust (Note 17) 25,582 19,447

545,868 509,032

9. Trade and Other Receivables

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Trade receivables 144,579 123,610

GST receivables 2,371 -

Grants receivables 282,006 2,078,152

Interest receivable on fixed deposit 27,187 19,212

Other receivables - 1,938

Related party- non-trade (Note 3) 30,000 30,000

486,143 2,252,912

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled on 30 days' terms.

10. Other Assets

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Deposits 77,839 69,658

Prepayments 224,483 204,894

302,322 274,552

Deposits are settled upon expiry or termination of the relevant services.

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Cash in hand and cash at bank 5,586,920 4,512,755

Fixed deposits 4,906,265 4,871,092

10,493,185 9,383,847

Fixed deposit (more than 12 months maturity) (1,031,367) (1,062,437)

Cash and cash equivalents as shown in statement of financial
position 9,461,818 8,321,410
Fixed deposit held by banker to cover the bank guarantee issued
for tenancy deposit (136,917) (136,576)

Cash and cash equivalents as shown in cash flow statement 9,324,901 8,184,834

Fixed deposits bear interest at 0.25% to 1.83% (2018: 0.25% to 1.40%) and for a tenure of 9 to 24
months (2018: 1 to 24 months) from the end of the reporting year.
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12. Development and Maintenance of HWA Premises Fund

This represents fund designated for the development of the Charity's future premise which was
redefined to represent fund designated for the development and maintenance of the Charity's premise
on 29 April 2017, Extraordinary General Meeting.

13. Care and Share Fund

Care and
Share Fund

Care and
Share Fund-

Vehicle

Care and
Share Fund-

Computer

Care and
Share Fund-
Renovation

2019 2018

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

Balance at
beginning of year 349,695 79,981 35,969 816,667 1,282,312 1,423,033
Government grants
received 432,535 - - - 432,535 -
Less:

Charged to financial
activities (507,596) - - - (507,596) -
Utilised during the
year (8,912) - - - (8,912) -
Amortisation (Note
8) - (37,007) (35,969) (108,284) (181,260) (140,721)

Balance at end of
year 265,722 42,974 - 708,383 1,017,079 1,282,312

The Care and Share Matching Grant is provided by the government in celebration SG50 to build
capabilities and capacities of the social service sector. The grant matches one dollar for every
donation dollar raised by the Charity.

14. HWA- Micro Finance Assistance Scheme

2019 2018

SGD SGD

At beginning of year 51,000 49,800

Repayment received during the year 1,600 1,200

At end of year 52,600 51,000

This represents an interest-free micro finance scheme for members to start small scale business.

15. Scholarship Fund

Teo Poh Lian
Fund

ANZ Fund 2019 2018

SGD SGD SGD SGD

At beginning and end of year 53,088 15,000 68,088 68,088

16. HWA- Rotary Skills Assistance Fund

This represents fund designated for the sponsorship of vocational and skills training.
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17. Community Silver Trust Fund

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Community Silver Trust fund (i) 1,462,478 2,250,023

Community Silver Trust capital grant (ii) 332,804 202,469

1,795,282 2,452,492

(i) Community Silver Trust fund

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Balance at beginning of year 2,250,023 792,501

Voluntary income- Community Silver Trust matching grant - 2,112,062

Less: Expenditures (631,628) (639,790)

Gross transfers between funds (155,917) (14,750)

Balance at end of year 1,462,478 2,250,023

These are dollar-for-dollar donation matching grants provided by the government through Agency for
Integrated Care (“AIC”) to enhance the services of voluntary welfare organisations (“VWOs”) in the
intermediate and long-term care (“ILTC”) sector for eligible donations received by the Charity. Ministry
of Health is the manager of AIC.

(ii) Community Silver Trust capital grant

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Balance at beginning of year 202,469 207,166

Gross transfers between funds 155,917 14,750

Amortisation for the year (note 8) (25,582) (19,447)

Balance at end of year 332,804 202,469

The Community Silver Trust capital grant was set up from the Community Silver Trust fund for the
purpose of capitalising the fixed assets purchased with the fund proceeds. These amounts are
amortised to net-off the corresponding depreciation in the statement of financial activities.

18. Mr and Mrs Wong Financial Assistance Fund

This represents fund designated for the Charity’s needy beneficiaries who have difficulties paying for
our services.

19. Deferred Capital Grants

2019 2018

SGD SGD

At beginning of year 1,215,017 1,254,589

Deferred grants received 128,631 107,888

Income and expenditure

Deferred capital grants amortised (170,951) (147,460)

At end of year 1,172,697 1,215,017

This is in respect of grants credited to statement of financial activities to match depreciation of
Charity's plant and equipment.
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20. Trade and Other Payables

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Trade payables 559,711 502,628

GST payables - 4,394

Others 59,953 66,335

619,664 573,357

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled on 30 days' terms.

Other payables include SGD 53,137 (2018: SGD 53,137) for balance payment of renovation in
progress.

21. Other Liabilities

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Advance donation 90,000 75,000

Deposits received for rental of wheel chair 2,215 2,330

92,215 77,330

Deferred income received from Chen Su Lan is tax exempt donation.

22. Advance Subsidies

This represents temporary occupation licence received from Singapore Land Authority.

23. Operating Lease Commitments- As Lessee

At the end of the reporting year, the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Rental of premise and office equipment

Not later than one year 250,175 167,661

Later than one year but not later than five years 611,386 28,578

861,561 196,239

Operating lease payments are for rentals payable for office premise and office equipment. The lease
rental terms are negotiated for an average term of two to six years and rentals are not subject to an
escalation clause.

24. Income Tax

The society is a registered charity under the Charities Act 1982 and is exempted from income tax
under Section 13U of the Income Tax Act.
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25. Reserve Policy

The objectives of the Committee of Management when managing funds is to safeguard the Charity’s
ability to continue as going concern.

The Committee of Management actively and regularly review and manage its funds structure to
ensure optimal capital structure, taking into consideration the future requirements, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows and projected capital expenditures.

The Committee of Management monitor funds using the annual operating expenditure to total funds
ratio.

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Annual operating expenditure (A) 7,678,507 7,664,127

Total funds (B) 13,374,427 13,849,704

Annual operating expenditure to total funds ratio (times) (A)/(B) 0.57 0.55

The Charity is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. There were no changes in the
Charity’s approach to capital management during the year.

26. Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The main risks from the Charity's financial instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk and cash flow and
fair value of interest rate risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below:

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell
financial assets quickly at close to its fair value.

The Charity maintains sufficient level of cash and cash equivalents to finance the Charity's operation
and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

Analysis of Financial Instruments by Remaining Contractual Maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Charity's assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting year based on contractual undiscounted payments.

2019 2018

1 year
or less

2 to
5 years

Total
contractual

cash flow

1 year
or less

2 to
5 years

Total
contractual

cash flow
SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

Financial assets

Trade and other
receivables

486,143 - 486,143 2,252,912 - 2,252,912

Other assets 77,839 - 77,839 69,658 - 69,658

Fixed deposit 3,874,898 1,031,367 4,906,265 3,808,655 1,062,437 4,871,092

Cash in hand and at
bank

5,586,920 - 5,586,920 4,512,755 - 4,512,755

10,025,800 1,031,367 11,057,167 10,643,980 1,062,437 11,706,417
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Financial liabilities

Trade and other
payables

619,664 - 619,664 573,357 - 573,357

Other liabilities 2,215 - 2,215 2,330 - 2,330

621,879 - 621,879 575,687 - 575,687

Total net undiscounted
financial assets 9,403,921 1,031,367 10,435,288 10,068,293 1,062,437 11,130,730

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a loss to the Charity. The Charity’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other
receivables. For other financial assets (including cash), the Charity minimises credit risk by dealing
exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

The Charity has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The Charity
performs ongoing credit evaluation of its counterparties’ financial condition and generally do not
require a collateral.

The Charity considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

The Charity has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when internal and/or external
information indicates that the financial asset is unlikely to be received, which could include default of
contractual payments due for more than 90 days or there is significant difficulty of the counterparty.

To minimise credit risk, the Charity has developed and maintained the Charity’s credit risk gradings to
categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The credit rating information is
supplied by publicly available financial information and the Charity’s own trading records to rate its
major customers and other debtors. The Charity considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information which includes the following indicators:

- Internal credit rating
- External credit rating
- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations
- Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor
- Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor
- Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtor, including changes in

the payment status of debtors in the Charity and changes in the operating results of the debtor.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more
than 90 days past due in making contractual payment.

The Charity determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

- There is significant difficulty of the debtor
- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event
- It is becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
- There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulty

The Charity categorises a receivable for potential write-off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments more than 120 days past due. Financial assets are written off when there is evidence
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and the debtor has no realistic prospect of
recovery.
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The Charity’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category Definition of Category Basis for Recognising
Expected Credit Loss
(ECL)

i Counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have
any past due amounts

12-month ECL

ii Amount is >90 days past due or there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired

iii Amount is >120 days past due or there is evidence
indicating the asset is credit-impaired (in default)

Lifetime ECL
- credit impaired

iv There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the debtor has no realistic prospect
of recovery

Amount is written off

The ageing of trade and other receivables as at 31 March:

2019 2018

Trade receivables past due SGD SGD

31 to 60 days 40,665 12,687

61 to 90 days 1,198 4,960

More than 90 days 21,819 29,359

63,682 47,006

As at the statement of financial position date, the Charity does not have any trade receivables that are
subject to ECLs.

Other Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Other financial assets at amortised costs include other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Credit Risk Concentration Profile

The Charity has no significant concentration of credit risk.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of financial assets

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the Charity to incur a financial loss.

The carrying amounts of cash at banks and fixed deposits and other receivables represent the
Charity's maximum exposure to credit risk. Cash at banks and fixed deposits that are neither past due
nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks which have high credit-ratings as determined by
international credit-rating agencies.

No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk.
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Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Charity's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Charity's fixed deposits
with financial institution at variable rates. Information relating to the Charity's interest rate exposure is
also disclosed in Note 11.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for fixed
deposits placed with financial institution at the financial position date. A 0.5% increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally and represents Management Committee's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Sensitivity Analysis for Interest Rate Risk

The following carrying amounts of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities of the Charity that
are exposed to interest rate risk:

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Fixed deposits 4,906,265 4,871,092

At end of the reporting year, if SGD interest rates had been 0.5% (2018: 0.5%) lower/higher with all
other variables held constant the Charity's profit before tax would have been SGD 24,531 (2018: SGD
24,355) higher/lower.

27. Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The following table summarises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the
end of the reporting year.

2019 2018

SGD SGD

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) - 11,706,417

Financial assets at amortised cost 11,057,167 -

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 621,879 575,687

28. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables and
payables, other liabilities and amounts payable approximate their respective fair values due to the
relatively short- term maturity of these financial instruments.
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Our Core Services 

Home Care Services 

Rehabilitation Services

Social Service & Integration 

Wheelchair-Accessible Transport Services 



   Ensuring this space... 

...for more inclusion ahead.

Handicaps Welfare Association (HWA)

16 Whampoa Drive, Singapore 327725
Tel : (65) 6254 3006  Fax : (65) 6253 7375

www.hwa.org.sg

Find us on facebook.com/HWASingapore


